Provincial Gazette **Free State Province**



Provinsiale Koerant Provinsie Vrystaat

Published by Authority

Uitgegee op Gesag

FRIDAY, 18 FEBRUARY 2000 No. 11 VRYDAG, 18 FEBRUARIE 2000 Index Page No. Inhoud Bladsy LOCAL GOVERNMENT NOTICE PLAASLIKE REGERINGSKENNISGEWINGS Qwaqwa 2 Qwaqwa 2 Johnnesburg Bur Library

MAY 1999

LOCAL GOVERNMENT

QWAQWA TRANSITIONAL RURAL COUNCIL

WATER SUPPLY BYLAWS

AS PROVIDED FOR IN SECTION 21 OF THE WATER SERVICES ACT, ACT NO 108, 1997

MAY 1999

WATER SUPPLY BYLAWS

QWAQWA

TRANSITIONAL RURAL COUNCIL

TABLE OF CONTENTS

_	GENERAL		rage iii.
)	1.	DEFINITIONS	2
	2.	RESPONSIBILITY FOR COMPLIANCE WITH THESE BYLAWS	4
	3.	NOTICES AND DOCUMENTS	4
	4.	POWER TO SERVE, AND COMPLIANCE WITH NOTICES	4
	5.	INTERFERENCE WITH WATER SUPPLY SYSTEM	4
	6.	OBSTRUCTION OF ACCESS TO WATER SUPLY SYSTEM	4
	7.	POWER OF ENTRY AND INSPECTION	4
	8.	OFFENCES	5
	9.	RELAXATION OF WAIVER	5
)	MAKING AI	PPLICATION	
	10.	UNAUTHORISED USE OF WATER	5
	11.	APPLICATION FOR SUPPLY OF WATER	5
	12.	SPECIAL AGREEMENTS FOR SUPPLY OF WATER	6
	13.	PURPOSE OF SUPPLY	6
	14.	TERMINATION OF AGREEMENT FOR SUPPLY OF WATER	6
	15.	PAYMENT OF DEPOSIT	6

TABLE OF CONTENTS

GEIII	110 0	SHILETED	
	16.	PROVISION OF CONNECTION PIPE	7
	17.	CONNECTION PIPES	7
	18.	INTERCONNECTION BETWEEN PREMISES	7
	19.	GENERAL CONDITIONS OF SUPPLY	7
	20.	RESTRICTION OR CUTTING-OFF OF SUPPLY	8
	21.	INTERRUPTION OF SUPPLY AT CUSTOMER'S REQUEST	8
ř	22.	DISCONNECTION OF WATER SUPPLY	8
	23.	WATER SUPPLIED FROM WATER SERVICES AUTHORITIES HYDRANTS	9
мете	RING		
2	24.	METERING OF WATER SUPPLIED	9
	25.	QUANTITY OF WATER SUPPLIED TO CUSTOMER	9
	26.	DEFECTIVE METERS	10
	27.	SPECIAL METER READING AT REQUEST OF CUSTOMER	10
	28.	SPECIAL METERING	10
PAYM	IENT		
	29.	PAYMENT FOR WATER SUPPLIED	10
	30.	AMENDMENTS TO PRESCRIBED CHARGES FOR WATER SUPPLIED.	11
	31.	WATER ACCOUNTS	l
	32.	NO REDUCTION OF AMOUNT PAYABLE FOR WATER WASTED	1
	33.	CHARGES OTHER THAN FOR WATER CONSUMED	1
	34.	ADJUSTMENT OF QUANTITY OF WATER SUPPLIED TO CUSTOMER	1

TABLE OF CONTENTS

POLL	OITU	N OF WATER	
	35.	OWNER TO PREVENT POLLUTION OF WATER	11
REST	RICTI	ON ON THE USE OF WATER	
	36.	WATER RESTRICTIONS	12
ENSU	RING	WATER CONSERVATION	
	37.	WASTE OF WATER	12
MISC	ELLA	NEOUS	
	38.	USE OF WATER FROM SOURCES OTHER THAN THE WATER SUPPLY SYSTEM	13
	39.	NOTIFICATION OF BOREHOLES	13
	40.	SAMPLING OF WATER	13
	41.	SUPPLY OF NON-POTABLE WATER BY WATER SERVICES AUTHORITY	13
	42.	CONDITIONS OF SUPPLY OF NON-POTABLE WATER	13
	43.	WARNING NOTICES	14
	44.	TESTING OF PRESSURE IN WATER SUPPLY SYSTEMS	14
	45.	PIPES IN STREETS OR PUBLIC PLACES	14

GENERAL

1. Definitions

- In these bylaws, unless the context otherwise indicates-
 - "Authorisation Committee" means the body authorised to compile the schedule of approved pipes and fittings;
 - "backflow" means the flow of water in any pipe in a direction opposite to the normal direction of flow;
 - "Back siphonage" means the backflow of water resulting from negative pressures in a water installation or in the water supply system;
 - "borehole" means a hole sunk into the earth for the purpose of locating, abstracting or using subterranean water and includes a spring;
 - "Capacity" in relation to a storage tank means the volume of the tank between the operating water level of the water contained in such tank and the invert of the outlet from the tank:
 - "combined installation" means a water installation used for fire-fighting and domestic, commercial or industrial purposes;
 - "connection pipe" means a pipe, the ownership of which is vested in the Water Services Authority and installed by it for the purpose of conveying water from a main to a water installation, and includes a "communication pipe" referred to in SABS 0252 Part 1;
 - "customer" means any occupier of any premises to which the Water Services Authority has agreed to supply or is actually supplying water, or if there be no occupier, then any person who has entered into a current agreement with the Water Services Authority for the supply of water to such premises or, if there be no such person, then the owner of the premises; provided that where water is supplied through a single water meter to a number of occupiers, it shall mean the occupier, or person, to whom the Water Services Authority has agreed to supply water;
 - "domestic purposes" in relation to the supply of water means water supplied for drinking, ablution and culinary purposes to premises used predominantly for residential purposes;
 - "fire installation" means a water installation which conveys potable water solely for the purpose of fire-fighting;

- "fixed quantity water delivery system" means a water installation which delivers a fixed quantity of water to a customer in any single day;
- "flat rate basis" means the payment of a monthly fixed prescribed charge by a customer to the Water Services Authority, irrespective of the quantity of water supplied to the customer;
- "general installation" means a water installation which conveys potable water for a combination of domestic, commercial and industrial purposes;
- "Industrial purposes" in relation to the supply of water means water supplied to any premises which constitute a factory as defined in the General Administrative Regulations, published in terms of the Occupational health and Safety Act, 1993 (Act 85 of 1993);
- "installation work" means work in respect of the construction of, or carried out on a water installation;
- "main" means a pipe, other than a connection pipe, vesting in the Water Services Authority and used by it for the purpose of conveying water to customers;
- "meter" means a water meter (conventional or prepaid meter) as defined by the Regulations published in terms of the Trade metrology Act, 1973 (Act 77 of 1973) or, in the case of water meters of size greater than 100mm, a device which measures the quantity of water passing through it;
- "Minister" means the Minister of Water Affairs and Forestry;
- "occupier" means a person who occupies any premises or part thereof, without regard to the title under which he or she occupies;
- "officer" means an employee of the Water Services Authority or any other person who is authorised by it to perform any act, function or duty in terms of, or exercise any power under these bylaws;
- "operating water level" means the level of water reached in a storage tank when the valve controlling the inlet of water to the tank closes under normal operating conditions;
- "owner" means -
- (a) the person in whom from time to time is vested the legal title to premises;

- (b) in case where the person in whom the legal title to premises is vested is insolvent or dead, or is under any form of legal disability whatsoever, the person in whom the administration and control of such premises is vested as curator, trustee, executor, administrator, judicial manager, liquidator or other legal representative;
- (c) in any case where the Water Services Authority is unable to determine the identity of such person, a person who is entitled to the benefit of the use of such premises or a building or buildings thereon;
- (d) in the case of premises for which a lease agreement of 30 years or longer has been entered into, the lessee thereof;
- (e) in relation to -
 - a piece of land delineated on a sectional plan registered in terms of the Sectional titles Act, 1986 (Act 95 of 1986), the developer or the body corporate in respect of the common property, or
 - (2) a section as defined in such Act, the person in whose name such section is registered under a sectional title deed and includes the law fully appointed agent of such a person;
 - "pollution" means the introduction into the water supply system, or a water installation, of any substance which can make the water harmful to health or impair its quality;
 - "pre-paid meter" means a water meter system controlled by an electronic device to allow a specific quantity of water, which has been paid for in advance, to flow through the metering system;
 - "premises" means any piece of land, the external surface boundaries of which are delineated on -
 - (a) a general plan or diagram registered in terms of the Land Survey Act, 1927 (Act 9 of 1927), or in terms of the Deeds Registries Act, 1937 (Act 47 of 1937); or
 - (b) a sectional plan registered in terms of the Sectional titles Act, 1986 (Act 95 of 1986); or
 - (c) any piece of land as described in Proclamation R293/1962 and any amendment thereto; or
 - (d) any piece of land situated in the rural area of which it is occupied for residential, professional, commercial, religious, missionary, educational or public purposes which ever the case may be, which are provided for by law, and which includes any building on such premises;

- "prescribed" means prescribed by the Water Services Authority;
- "prescribed charge" means a charge prescribed by the Water Services Authority;
- "public notice" means a notice in a newspaper in at least two of the official languages in general use within the Province or area in question, and where possible, the notice shall be published in a newspaper appearing predominantly in the language utilised in the publication of the notice;
- "registered contractor" means a company registered by the SAQCC for the Water Supply Industry;
- "registered person" means a person accepted by the Water Services Authority as being competent to issue the necessary certification;
- "registered plumber" means a person registered by the SAQCC for the Water Supply Industry;
- "SAQCC for the Water Supply Industry" means the South African Qualification and Certification Committee constituted in terms of Act no. 58 of 1995;
- "schedule of approved pipes and fitting" means the list of approved pipes and fittings compiled by the Authorisation Committee;
- "service pipe" means a pipe which is part of a water installation and which connects with the connection pipe;
- "terminal water fitting" means a water fitting at an outlet of a water installation which controls the discharge of water from a water installation;
- "water" means water which complies with the prescribed compulsory national standards, as layed down by the Minister;
- "water fitting" means a component of a water installation other than a pipe, through which water passes or in which it is stored;
- "water installation" means the pipes and water fittings which are situated on any premises and vested in the owner thereof and used or intended to be used in connection with the use of water on such premises, and includes a pipe and water fitting situated outside the boundary of the premises, which either connects to the connection pipe relating to such premises or is otherwise laid with the permission of the Water Services Authority
- "Water Services Act" means the Water Services Act (Act no. 108 of 1997), as amended from time to time;

"Water Service Authority" means the QwaQwa Transitional Rural Council;

"water supply system" means the structures, aqueducts, pipes, valves, pumps, meters or other appurtenances relating thereto which are vested in the Water Services Authority and are used or intended to be used by it in connection with the supply of water, and includes any part of the system; and

"working day" means a day other than a Saturday, Sunday or public holiday.

(2) Wherever in these bylaws a word or expression which is defined in the Water Services Act, but is not defined in these bylaws, is used, such word or expression shall bear the meaning ascribed to it in the Water Service Act.

2. Responsibility for compliance with these bylaws

Notice relating to a breach of these bylaws on premises shall be served;

- (a) on the owner of the premises where matters relating to the water installation are involved; and
- (b) on the customer where matters relating to the use of a water installation are concerned.

3. Notices and document

- (1) A notice or document issued by the Water Services Authority in terms of these bylaws shall be deemed to be duly issued if it is signed by an officer.
- (2) If a notice or document is to be served on a person in terms of these bylaws such service shall be effected -
 - (a) by delivering it to him or her personally or to his or her duly authroised agent;
 - (b) by delivering it at his or her residence or place of business or employment of a person apparently no less than sixteen years of age and apparently residing or employed there;
 - (c) if he or she has nominated an address for legal purposes, by delivering it to such an address;
 - (d) if he or she has not nominated an address for legal purposes, by delivering it to the address given by him or her in his or her application for a supply of water, for the reception of an account for water supplied;
 - (e) by registered or certified post addressed to his or her last known address;

- (f) in the case of a body corporate, by delivering it at the registered office or business premises of such body corporate; or
- (g) if service cannot be effected in terms of paragraphs (a) to (f), by affixing it to a principal door of entry to the premises concerned.
- (3) In the case where compliance with a notice is required within a specified number of working days, such period shall be deemed to commence on the date of receipt of such notice, such notice have been sent by certified mail.

4. Power to serve, and compliance with notice

- The Water Services Authority may, by written notice, order a person who by act or omission commits a breach of these bylaws or of any condition imposed thereunder to remedy such breach within a period specified in the notice.
- (2) If a person fails to comply with a written notice served on him or her by the Water Services Authority in terms of these bylaws within the specified period, it may take such action or do such work as in its opinion is necessary to ensure compliance, and recover the cost of such action or work from the person.

5. Interference with water supply system

 No person other than an officer shall operate the water supply system or effect a connection to the water supply system.

6. Obstruction of access to water supply system

- (1) No person shall prevent or restrict physical access to the water supply system.
- (2) If a person contravenes sub-section (1), the Water Services Authority may -
 - (a) by written notice require such person to restore access at his or her own expense within a specified period; or
 - (b) if it is of the opinion that the situation is a matter of urgency, without prior notice, restore access.

7. Power of entry and inspection

(1) An officer may for any purpose connected with the implementation or enforcement of these bylaws, at all reasonable times, after having given notice of the intention to do so, or in an emergency at any time, without prior notice, enter premises, request information and carry out such inspection and examination as he or she may deem necessary, and for those purposes operate any water fitting of the water installation. (2) If the Water Service Authority considers it necessary that work be performed to enable an officer to perform a function referred to in sub-section (1) properly and effectively,

it may-

- (a) by written notice require the owner or occupier of the premises at his or her own expense to do specified work within a specified period; or
- (b) if in its opinion the situation is a matter of urgency, without prior notice do such work or cause it to be done.
- (3) If the work referred to in sub-section (2) is carried out for the sole purpose of establishing whether a contravention of these bylaws has been committed and no such contravention is established, the Water Services Authority shall bear the expense connected therewith together with that of restoring the premises to their former condition.
- (4) If an officer requires the presence of -
 - (a) an owner at an inspection of his or her water installation; or
 - (b) a registered plumber doing installation work at an inspection of such work;

he or she may give such person written notice of not less that five working days to that effect, indicating the date and time when and the place where her or she proposes to carry out the inspection.

8. Offences

- (1) A person who -
 - (a) fails or refuses to give access required by an officer in terms of section 7(1);
 - (b) obstructs or hinders an officer in the exercise of his or her powers or performance of his or her functions or duties under these bylaws;
 - (c) fails or refuses to give an officer such information as he or she may reasonably require for the purpose of exercising his or her functions or duties under these bylaws or who gives such officer false or misleading information knowing it to be false or misleading;
 - (d) contravenes or fails to comply with a provision of these bylaws;
 - fails to comply with a condition or prohibition imposed in terms of these bylaws;

(f) fails to comply with the terms of a notice served upon him or her in terms of these bylaws;

Shall be guilty of an offence and subject to the penalties prescribed in the Water Services Act and to the amount prescribed by the Water Services Authority.

9. Relaxation or waiver

The Water Services Authority may, in a specific instance and for a particular owner or customer, relax or waive in writing the requirements of a provision of these bylaws upon such conditions as it may deem fit to impose, if it is of the opinion that the application or operation of that provision in that case would be unreasonable, provided that the Water Services Authority shall not waive any section of these bylaws which could result in the following consequences:

- (a) the wastage or excessive consumption of water;
- (b) the evasion or avoidance of water restrictions;
- (c) the endangering of public health or safety;
- (d) the non-payment for water or related service;

and provided further that any relaxation or waiver does not result in any standards prescribed in terms of the Water Services Act not being complied with.

MAKING APPLICATION

10. Unauthorised use of water

No person shall take water from the water supply system -

- (a) until an agreement referred to in section 11(2) or 12(1) has been concluded;
- (b) except through a connection pipe provided in terms of section 17 or from a hydrant in terms of section 23.

11. Application for supply of water

- No person shall take or be supplied with water from the water supply system unless he or she has made application to the Water Services Authority on the prescribed form for a supply of water for a specific purpose and such application has been granted.
- (2) An application agreed to by the Water Services Authority shall constitute an agreement between the Water Services Authority and the applicant, and such agreement shall take effect on the date referred to or stipulated in such agreement.

- (3) A customer shall be liable for all the prescribed charges in respect of a supply of water granted to him or her until the agreement referred to in sub-section (2) has been terminated in terms of section 14.
- (4) In preparing an application form for the supply of water the Water Services Authority shall ensure that the document and the process of interaction with any person making application are understood by that person.

In the case of illiterate or similarly disadvantaged persons, the Water Services Authority shall ensure that the person is made fully aware of and understands the contents of the application form.

- (5) Such form shall require the following minimum information -
 - (a) certification by an officer that the applicant is aware of and understands the contents of the form;
 - (b) acceptance by the customer of the provisions of the water bylaws and acceptance of liability for the cost of all water consumed until the agreement is terminated;
 - (c) name of customer;
 - (d) address of premises at which water is to be supplied;
 - (e) account address;
 - (f) the purpose for which water is to be used;
 - (g) whether a deposit may be needed and, if so, the manner in which it is refunded;
 - (h) the agreed date by which the service shall be provided.

12. Special agreements for supply of water

- (1) The Water Services Authority may enter into a special agreement for the supply of water to-
 - (a) an applicant inside its area of jurisdiction, if the supply necessitates the imposition of conditions not contained in the prescribed form; and
 - (b) an applicant outside its area of jurisdiction, if such application has been approved by the Water Services Authority in which the applicant resides.

(2) If the Water Services Authority, in terms of a special agreement, provides a supply of water to an applicant outside its area of jurisdiction, it may permit him or her to sell such water to other persons outside its area of jurisdiction, subject to the condition prescribed in Section 39(7).

13. Purpose of supply

Where the purpose for which water is used is changed, the customer shall enter into a new agreement as prescribed in Sections 11 and 12.

14. Termination of agreement for supply of water

- A customer may terminate an agreement referred to in section 11(2) by giving to the Water Services Authority not less than five working days notice in writing of his or her intention to do so.
- (2) The Water Services Authority may, by notice in writing of not less than fourteen working days, advise a customer of it's intention to terminate his or her agreement for supply of water if-
 - (a) he or she has not consumed any water during the preceding six months or has not made arrangements satisfactory to it for the continuation of his or her agreement;
 - (b) he or she has committed a breach of these bylaws and has failed to rectify such reach;
 - (c) in terms of an arrangement made by it with another Water Services Authority supplying water, such authority has agreed to supply water to the customer.

In giving such notice, the Water Services Authorit shall inform the customer of any right of appeal and the procedure to follow if he or she wishes to exercise such right.

(3) The Water Services Authority may, after having given fourteen days notice in writing, terminate an agreement for a supply of water if a customer has vacated the premises to which such agreement relates.

15. Payment of deposit

(1) The Water Services Authority may at any time require the customer to deposit a sum of money as a security to cover the estimated costs of the water to be consumed over a period of time and may also review from time to time the sum so deposited and require that the deposit be increased.

- (2) A deposit contemplated in sub-section (1) shall accompany an application submitted in terms of section 11(1) and on conclusion of an agreement contemplated in section 12(1).
- (3) A deposit paid in terms of sub-section (1) shall not be regarded as being in payment or part payment of an account due for the supply of water.
- (4) If, on the termination of an agreement in terms of section 14, any amount is outstanding in respect of the supply of water to a customer, the Water Services Authority may apply the deposit in payment or part payment of the amount and refund any balance to the customer.
- (5) An agreement referred to in section 11(2) or 12(1) may contain a condition that a deposit shall be forfeited to the Water Services Authority if it has not been claimed within 24 months after the termination of the agreement.
- (6) No interest shall accrue to the Consumer in respect of the deposit.

GETTING CONNECTED

16. Provision of connection pipe

- If an agreement for a supply of water in respect of premises has been concluded and no connection pipe exists in respect of the premises, the owner shall make application on the prescribed form and pay the prescribed charge for the installation of such a pipe.
- (2) If an application is made for a supply of water to premises which are so situated that it is necessary to extend the water supply system in order to supply water to the premises, the Water Services Authority may agree to the extension subject to such conditions as it may impose, including recovering the cost of such extension from the consumer concerned.

17. Connection pipes

- A connection pipe provided and installed by the Water Services Authority shall -
 - (a) be located in a position agreed to between the owner and the Water Services Authority, and be of a suitable size determined by the Water Services Authority;
 - (b) terminate at the boundary of the land owned by or vested in the Water Services Authority, or over which it has a servitude or other right, or at the outlet of the water meter if the meter is located on the property being supplied.

- (2) In reaching agreement with an owner concerning the location of a connection pipe, the Water Services Authority shall ensure that the owner is aware of -
 - (a) practical restrictions which may exist regarding the location of a connection pipe;
 - (b) the cost implications of the various possible locations of the connection pipe;
 - (c) whether or not the Water Services Authority requires the owner to fix the location of the connection pipe by providing a portion of his or her water installation at or outside the boundary of his or her premises, or such agreed position inside or outside his or her premises where the connection is required for the Water Services Authority to connect to such installation.

18. Interconnection between premises

An owner of a premises shall ensure that no interconnection exists between the water installation on his or her premises and the water installation on other premises, unless he or she has obtained the prior written consent of the Water Services Authority and complies with any conditions that it may have imposed.

19. General conditions of supply

- The granting of a supply of water by the Water Services Authority shall not constitute an undertaking by it to maintain at any time or at any point in its water. supply system -
 - (a) an uninterrupted supply;
 - (b) a specific pressure or rate of flow in such supply;
 - (c) a specific standard of quality of the water;

provided that, if the water supply is interrupted for more than 48 hours, then the Water services Authority undertakes to provide an alternative supply of water to meet basic needs.

(2) The Water Services Authority may, subject to the provisions of sub-section (1)(b), specify the maximum height to which water will be supplied from the water supply system.

- (3) If an owner requires that any of the standards referred to in sub-section (1) be maintained on his or her premises, he or she shall make provision in the water installation for such maintenance.
- (4) The Water Services Authority may, in an emergency interrupt the supply of water to any premises without prior notice.
- (5) If in the opinion of the Water Services Authority the consumption of water by a customer adversely affects the supply of water to another customer, it may apply such restrictions as it may deem fit to the supply of water to the first-mentioned customer in order to ensure a reasonable supply of water to the other customer.

20. Restriction or cutting-off of supply

- (1) Without prejudice to any other right it may have, the Water Services Authority may, if a customer has -
 - (a) failed to pay a sum due to it in terms of these by laws; or
 - (b) committed a breach of these bylaws and has failed to rectify such breach within the period specified in a written notice served on him or her requiring him or her to do so;

by giving fourteen days written notice to inform him or her of its intention to restrict or cut-off his or her supply of water on a specified date and it may on or after that date so cut-off or restrict such supply. In giving such notice the Water Services Authority shall inform the customer of any right of appeal and the procedure to follow if he or she wishes to exercise such right.

- (2) If in the opinion of the Water Services Authority such action is necessary as a matter of urgency to prevent waste of water, damage to property, danger to life or pollution of water, it may -
 - (a) without prior notice, cut off the supply of water to any premises; and
 - (b) enter upon such premises and do such emergency work, at the owner's expense, as it may deem necessary, and in addition by written notice require the owner to do such further work as it may deem necessary within a specified period.
- (3) The customer shall pay -
 - (a) the prescribed charge for the restriction or cutting-off of his or her supply in terms of subsection (1) or (2); and

(b) the prescribed charge for restoration of the water supply;

provided that, in the case of a restriction of supply in terms of sub-section (1), both the prescribed charges required in terms of sub-section (a) and (b) above shall be paid prior to the restoration of the water supply.

- (4) In providing written notice to a customer of its intention to restrict or cut off the water supply, the Water Services Authority shall advise the affected customer of any provisions which exist to enable such customer to pay any outstanding amount. Such provisions may include-
 - (a) the existence of an extended period over which the account may be paid, either with or without the payment of interest;
 - (b) the giving of information and assistance on how to access grant finance or welfare payments;
 - (c) the Giving of the names of persons within the Water Services Authority to contact for information and advice;
 - (d) the giving of information as to how to appeal against a decision to cut off or restrict the water supply.

21. Interruption of supply at customer's request

- (1) The Water Services Authority may, at the written re quest of a customer -
 - (a) cut off the supply of water to his or her premises; and
 - (b) restore the supply;

on the dates requested by him or her.

(2) The customer shall prior to the restoration of his or her water supply pay the prescribed charge for the cuttingoff of his or her supply of water, and for its restoration.

22. Disconnection of water supply

- The Water Services Authority may disconnect a water installation from the connection pipe and remove the connection pipe if-
 - (a) the agreement for supply has been terminated in terms of section 14 and it has not received an application for a subsequent supply of water to the premises served by the pipe within a period of 90 days of such termination; or
 - (b) the building on the premises concerned has been demolished.

23. Water supplied from Water Services Authorities hydrants

- The Water Services Authority may permit a temporary supply of water to be taken from one or more fire hydrants specified by it.
- (2) A person who desires a temporary supply of water referred to in sub-section (1) shall make application in the manner prescribed in section 11(1) and subject to such conditions as may be prescribed by the Water Services Authority on the prescribed form.

METERING

24. Metering of water supplied

- (1) All water supplied to a customer by the Water Services Authority, except where a flat rate basis payment system is being used, shall pass through a meter or other measuring device for the purpose of measuring the quantity of water consumed.
- (2) A meter referred to in sub-section (1) and its associated apparatus shall be provided and installed by the Water Services Authority, shall remain its property, and may be changed by the Water Services Authority when deemed necessary by it.
- (3) (a) The Water Services Authority may install the meter and its associated apparatus, serving a water installation at any point in the installation;
 - (b) If the Water Services Authority installs a meter in a water installation in terms of paragraph (a), it may install a section of pipe and associated fittings between the end of its connection pipe and the meter, and such section shall be deemed to form part of the water installation.
- (4) If the Water Services Authority installs a meter together with its associated apparatus in a water installation in terms of sub-section (3), the owner shall -
 - (a) provide a place satisfactory to the Water Services Authority in which to install it;
 - (b) ensure that unrestricted access is available to it at all times;
 - (c) be responsible for its protection and be liable for the costs arising from damage thereto, excluding damage arising from normal fair wear and tear;
 - (d) ensure that no connection is made to the pipe in which the meter is installed, between the meter and the connection pipe serving the installation; and

- (e) make provision for the drainage of water which may be discharge, from the pipe in which the meter is installed, in the course of work done by the Water Services Authority on the meter.
- (5) No person other than an officer shall -
 - (a) disconnect a meter and its associated apparatus from the pipe in which they are installed;
 - (b) break a seal which the Water Services Authority has placed on a meter; or
 - (c) in any other way interfere with a meter and its associated apparatus.
- (6) If the Water Services Authority considers that the size of a meter is unsuitable by reason of the quantity of water supplied to premises, it may install a meter of such size as it may deem necessary at it's own cost.
- (7) The Water Services Authority may require the installation, at the owner's expense, of a meter to each dwelling unit, in separate occupancy, on any premises, for use in determining quantity of water supplied to each such unit; provided that where fixed quantity water delivery systems are used, a single meter may be used to supply more than one unit.

25. Quantity of water supplied to customer

- For the purpose of assessing the quantity of water supplied through a meter to a customer over a specific period, it shall be deemed unless the contrary can be proved, that -
 - (a) the quantity is represented by the difference between readings of the meter taken at the beginning and end of such period;
 - (b) the meter was registering correctly during such period; and
 - (c) the entries in the records of the Water Services Authority were correctly made;

provided that if water is supplied to, or taken by a customer without its passing through a meter, the estimate by the Water Services Authority of the quantity of such water shall be deemed to be correct.

(2) If a contravention of section 24(5) occurs, the customer shall pay to the Water Services Authority the cost of such quantity of water as in its opinion was supplied to him or her.

26. Defective meters

- If a customer has reason to believe that a meter, used for measuring water, which was supplied to him or her by the Water Services Authority is defective he or she may, against payment of the prescribed charge, make application in writing for the meter to be tested.
- (2) The prescribed charge referred to in sub-section (1) shall be -
 - (a) retained by the Water Services Authority if the meter is found in terms of sub-section (3) or (4) not to be defective; or
 - (b) refunded to the applicant if the meter is found in terms of those sub-section to be defective.
- (3) A meter to which the bylaws relating to water meters published under the Trade Metrology Act, 1973 (Act 77 of 1973) are applicable shall be deemed to be defective if, when tested in accordance with SABS 1529 Part 1, it is found to have a percentage error in over-registration or under-registration greater than that permitted for a meter in use in terms of that specification.
- (4) A meter of size greater than 100mm diameter to which the specification referred to in sub-section (3) is not applicable, shall be deemed to be defective if it is found to have a percentage error in over-registration or under-registration greater than 5% at any one of the rates of flow when tested at the following percentages of its designed maximum rate of flow;
 - (a) 75% or more, of the design maximum flow;
 - (b) between 50% and 55% of the design maximum flow; and
 - (c) between 15% and 20% of the design maximum flow.

27. Special meter reading at request of customer

The Water Services Authority shall on receipt from the customer of written notice of not less than seven days and subject to payment of the prescribed charge, read a meter at a time or on a day other than that upon which it would normally be read.

28. Special metering

(1) If the Water Services Authority wishes, for purposes other than charging for water consumed, to ascertain the quantity of water which is used in a part of a water installation, it may be written notice advise the owner concerned of its intention to install a meter at such point in the water installation as it may specify.

- (2) The installation of a meter referred to in sub-section (1), its removal, and the restoration of the water installation after such removal shall be carried out at the expense of the Water Services Authority.
- (3) the provision of section 24(4) and 24(5) shall apply insofar as they may be applicable in respect of a meter installed in terms of sub-section (1).

PAYMENT

29. Payment for water supplied

- All water supplied by the Water Services Authority shall be paid for by the customer at the prescribed charge for that particular category of use for which the supply was granted.
- (2) A customer shall pay on a flat rate basis or for all water supplied to him or her from the date of the agreement referred to in section 11(2) or 12(1) until the date of termination thereof.
- (3) The Water Services Authority may estimate a quantity of water supplied in respect of a period or periods within the interval between actual successive readings of the meter, and may render an account to a customer for the quantity of water so estimated.
- (4) The amount of an account rendered for water supplied to a customer shall become payable on the due date stipulated in the account.
- (5) If a customer is dissatisfied with an account rendered for water supplied to him or her by the Water Services Authority, he or she may, prior to the due date stipulated therein, object in writing or be assisted by the Water Services Authority to object in writing, to the account, setting out his or her reasons for such dissatisfaction; provided that the lodging of an objection shall not entitle a customer to defer payment except with the written consent of the Water Services Authority. The customer shall be provided with a written response by the Water Services Authority within 45 days of the receipt of the written objection.
- (6) If a customer uses potable water for a category of use other than that for which it is supplied by the Water Services Authority and is in consequence not charged for water so used, or is charged for the water at a rate lower than that at which he or she should be charged, he or she shall be liable for the amount due to the Water Services Authority in accordance with the prescribed charges in respect of -
 - (a) the quantity of water which in the opinion of the Water Services Authority he or she has used and for which he or she has not been charged; or

- (b) the difference between the cost of the water used by him or her at the rate at which he or she has been charged and the cost of the water at the rate at which he or she should have been charged.
- (7) No customer who is supplied with water in terms of these bylaws shall sell such water unless provision has been made thereof in a special agreement referred to in section 12, or has obtained the prior written permission of the Water Services Authority to do so.

30. Amendments to prescribed charges for water supplied

If amendments to the prescribed charges for water supplied become operative on a date between meter readings, it shall be deemed, for the purpose of rendering an account in respect of the charges, that the same quantity of water was supplied in each period of twenty-four hours during the interval between the meter readings. The same principle shall be applied in the case of flat rate basis accounts.

31. Water Accounts

- (1) The Water Services Authority shall show on each water account rendered to a customer, except in the case of a flat rate basis account, the actual or estimated meter readings in kilolitres or cubic metres, together with the dates of the readings, taken at the beginning and end of the account period, as well as the applicable tariff or tariffs and the total amount due in Rands. If the readings are estimated, this shall be clearly indicated on the account.
- (2) When an estimated meter reading is used, the Water Services Authority must be able to provide a reason to the customer for doing so.
- (3) Where a flat rate basis account is rendered to a customer, the relevant dates as well as the total amount due in Rands shall be shown on the account.
- (4) Where pre-paid meters are used, no water account will be rendered.

32. No reduction of amount payable for water wasted

A customer shall not be entitled to a reduction of the amount payable for water wasted in a water installation.

33. Charges other than for water consumed

The Water Services Authority may, in addition to charges authorised elsewhere in these bylaws, prescribe and levy any of the following charges;

- (a) A charge payable by the customer in respect of each connection pipe or meter provided by the Water Services Authority to serve the premises occupied by him or her, whether or not water has been supplied to him or her, the charge being due from the date of the agreement referred to in section 11(2) or 12(1). Such charge shall not be based on any quantity of water consumed;
- (b) A monthly charge payable by the owner in respect of premises which, in the opinion of the Water Service Authority, can reasonably be connected to the water supply system but is not so connected.

34. Adjustment of quantity of water supplied to customer through defective meter

- (1) If a meter is found to be defective in terms of subsection 26(3) or 26(4), the Water Services Authority may estimate the quantity of water supplied to the customer concerned during the period in which, in its opinion, such meter was defective on the basis of the average daily quantity of water supplied to him or her over-
 - (a) a period between two successive meter readings subsequent to the replacement of the meter; or
 - (b) a period in the previous year corresponding to the period in which the meter was defective; or
 - (c) the period between three successive meter readings prior to the meter becoming defective;

whichever it considers the most appropriate.

(2) If the quantity of water supplied to a customer during the period when his or her meter was defective cannot be estimated in terms of sub-section (1), the Water Services Authority may estimate the quantity on any basis that is available to it.

POLLUTION OF WATER

35. Owner to prevent pollution of water

- An owner shall provide and maintain approved measures to prevent the entry of a substance, which may be a danger to health or adversely affect the potability of water or affect its fitness for use, into;
 - (a) the water supply system; and
 - (b) any part of the water installation on his or her premises.
- (2) If a person contravenes sub-section (1), the Water Services Authority may;

- (a) by written notice require such person to take remedial steps to prevent pollution of the water in the water supply system or water installation on his or her premises within a specified period; or
- (b) If it is of the opinion that the situation is a matter of urgency, without prior notice undertake the work required by sub-section 2(a).

RESTRICTION ON THE USE OF WATER

36. Water restrictions

- (1) The Water Services Authority may by notice -
 - (a) prohibit or restrict the consumption of water -
 - for specified purposes or otherwise than for specified purposes;
 - (ii) during specified hours of the day or on specified days or otherwise than during specified hours of the day or on specified days; and
 - (b) determine and impose -
 - limits on the quantity of water which may be consumed over a specified period;
 - (ii) charges additional to those prescribed in respect of the supply of water in excess of a limit contemplated in subparagraph (i); and
 - (iii) a general surcharge on the prescribed charges in respect of the supply of water; and
 - (c) impose restriction or prohibitions on the use or manner of use or disposition of an appliance by means of which water is used or consumed, or on the connection of such appliances to the water installation.
- (2) Subject to the provisions of section 11 of the Water Services Act, the Water Services Authority may limit the application of the provisions of a notice contemplated by sub-sections (1) to specified areas and classes of customers, premises and activities, and may permit deviations and exemptions from, and the relaxation of, any of the provisions in terms of criteria specified in such notice.
- (3) The Water Services Authority may -
 - (a) take, or by written notice require a customer at his or her own expense to take, such measures, including the installation of measurement devices and devices for restriction the flow of water, as may in its opinion be necessary to ensure compliance with a notice published in terms of subsection (1); or

- (b) cut off or, for such period as it may deem fit, restrict the supply of water to any premises in the event of a contravention on such premises or failure to comply with the terms of a notice published in terms of sub-section (1), and where the supply has been cut off, it shall only be restored when the prescribed charge for cutting off and reconnecting the supply has been paid.
- (4) The provisions of this clause shall also apply in respect of water supplied directly by the Water Services Authority to customers outside its area of jurisdiction, notwithstanding anything to the contrary in the conditions governing such supply, unless otherwise specified in the notice published in terms of sub-section (1).

ENSURING WATER CONSERVATION

37. Waste of water

- (1) No customer shall permit -
 - (a) the purposeless or wasteful discharge of water from terminal water fittings;
 - (b) pipes or water fittings to leak;
 - (c) the use of maladjusted or defective water fittings;
 - (d) an overflow of water to persist; or
 - (e) an inefficient use of water to persist.
- (2) An owner shall repair or replace any part of his or her water installation which is in such a state of disrepair that it is either causing or is likely to cause an occurrence listed in sub-section (1).
- (3) If an owner fails to take measures as contemplated is sub-section (2), the Water Services Authority shall, by written notice, require the owner to comply with the provision of sub-section (1).
- (4) If an owner fails to comply with the notice referred to in sub-section (3), the Water Services Authority shall take such measures as it may deem fit without prior notice and recover the cost of doing so from the owner.
- (5) (a) Subject to the provisions of section 11(4) of the Water Services Act, a customer shall ensure that any equipment or plant connected to his or her water installation uses water in an efficient manner.
 - (b) The Water Services Authority may, by written notice, prohibit the use by a customer of any equipment in a water installation if, in its opinion, its use of water is inefficient. In forming such an opinion the Water Services Authority shall compare the water usage of the device under conside-

ration, with similar products in a good state of repair and shall also take into account national norms and standards relating to the performance of such a device.

MISCELLANEOUS

- 38. Use of water from sources other than the water supply system
- (1) No person shall use or permit the use of water obtained from a source other than the water supply system, (e.g. rivers and springs) excepting rain water tanks which are not connected to the water installation, except with the prior consent of the Water Services Authority and in accordance with such conditions as it may impose, for domestic, commercial or industrial purposes.
- (2) Any person desiring the consent referred to in subsection (1) shall provide the Water Services Authority with evidence satisfactory to it that the water referred to in that sub-section complies, whether as a result of treatment or otherwise, with the requirements of SABS Specification 241-1984: Water for Domestic Supplies, published in the Government Gazette under General Notice 2828 dated 20 December 1985, or that the use of such water does not or will not constitute a danger to health.
- (3) Any consent given in terms of sub-section (1) may be withdrawn if, in the opinion of the Water Services Authority -
 - (a) a condition imposed in terms of sub-section (1) is breached; or
 - (b) the water no longer conforms to the requirements referred to in sub-section (2).
- (4) If water obtained from a borehole or other source of supply on any premises is used for a purpose which gives rise to the discharge of such water or a portion thereof into the Water Services Authority's sewerage system, the Water Services Authority may install a meter in the pipe leading from such borehole or other source of supply to the point or points where it is so used.
- (5) The provisions of section 24 shall apply insofar as they may be applicable in respect of the meter referred to in sub-section (4).

39. Notification of boreholes

(1) The Water Services Authority may, by public notice, require -

- (a) the owner of any premises within the area of jurisdiction of the Water Services Authority upon which a borehole exists, or, if the owner is not in occupation of such premises, the occupier thereof, to notify it on the prescribed form of the existence of a borehole on such premises, and provide it with such information in respect thereof as it may require; and
- (b) The owner or occupier of any premises who intends to sink a borehole on such premises to notify it on the prescribed form of such intention before work in connection therewith is commenced.
- (2) The owner or occupier of any premises who intends to sink a borehole shall undertake an environmental impact assessment for such intended borehole, to the satisfaction of the Water Services Authority, before sinking the borehole.

40. Sampling of water

- The Water Services Authority may take samples of water obtained from a source other than the water supply system and cause the samples to be tested for compliance with the requirements referred to in section 38(2).
- (2) the prescribed charge for the taking and testing of the samples referred to in sub-section (1) shall be paid by the person to whom consent to use the water was granted in terms of section 38(1).
- 41. Supply of non-potable water by Water Services
 Authority
- (1) The Water Services Authority may on application in terms of section 11 agree to supply non-potable water to a customer, subject to such terms and conditions as the Water Services Authority may impose.
- (2) Any supply of water agreed to in terms of sub-section (1) shall not be used for domestic or any other purposes which, in the opinion of the Water Services Authority, may give rise to a health hazard.

42. Conditions of supply of non-potable water

- No warranty, expressed or implied, shall apply to the purity of any non-potable water supplied by the Water Services Authority or its suitability for the purpose for which the supply was granted.
- (2) The supply of non-potable water shall, both as to condition and use, be entirely at the risk of the customer, who shall be liable for any consequential damage or loss arising to himself; herself or others arising directly or indirectly therefrom, including the consequences of any bona fide fault of the Water Services Authority or the malfunction of a treatment plant.

43. Warning notices

- On premises on which non-potable water is used, the owner shall ensure that every terminal water fitting and every appliance which supplies or uses the water is clearly marked with a weatherproof notice indicating that the water therefrom is water unsuitable for domestic purposes.
- (2) In an area where treated sewage effluent is used, the owner shall erect weatherproof notices in prominent positions warning that such effluent is not suitable for domestic purposes.
- (3) Every warning notice prescribed in terms of subsection (1) and (2) shall be in more than one official language and shall include the symbolic sign for nonpotable water, sign PV5 as described in SABS 1186.

44. Testing of pressure in water supply systems

The Water Services Authority may, on application by an owner and on payment of the prescribed charge, determine and furnish the owner with the value of the pressure in the water supply system relating to his or her premises over such period as the owner may request.

45. Pipes in streets or public places

No person shall for the purpose of conveying water derived from whatever source, lay or construct a pipe or associated component on, in or under street, public place or other land owned by, vested in, or under the control of any Water Services Authority, except with the prior written permission of that Water Services Authority and subject to such conditions as it may impose.



PROVINCIAL GAZETTE

(Published every Friday)

All correspondence, advertisements, etc. must be addressed to the Officer in charge of the Provincial Gazette, P.O. Box 517, Bloemfontein. Free Voucher copies of the Provincial Gazette or cuttings of advertisements are NOT supplied. If copies of the Provincial Gazette are required, R4,70 must be sent for each copy.

Subscription Rates (payable in advance)

The subscription fee for the Provincial Gazette (including all Extraordinary Provincial Gazettes) are as follows:

Half-yearly (post free)	R	122,50
Yearly (post free)	R	245,00
Price per single copy (post free)	R	4,70

Stamps are not accepted

Closing time for acceptance of copy

All advertisements must reach the Officer in Charge of the Provincial Gazette not later than 12:00, seven workings days prior to the publication of the Gazette. Advertisements received after that time will be held over for publication in the issue of the following week, or if desired by the advertiser, will be inserted in the current issue as a "Late Advertisement". In such case the advertisement must be delivered to the Officer in Charge not later than 10:30 on the Thursday of the week preceding the publication of the Gazette and double rate will be charged for that advertisement.

A "Late Advertisement" will not be inserted as such without definite instructions from the advertiser.

Advertisement Rates

Notices required by Law to be inserted in the Provincial Gazette: R2,00 per centimeter or portion thereof, single column.

Advertisement fees are payable in advance to the Officer in charge of the Provincial Gazette, P.O. Box 517, Bloemfontein, 9300.

Printed and published by the Free State Provincial Administration

PROVINSIALE KOERANT

(Verskyn elke Vrydag)

Alle korrespondensie, advertensies, ens. moet aan die Beampte Belas met die Provinsiale Koerant, Posbus 517, Bloemfontein, geadresseer word. Gratis eksemplare van die Provinsiale Koerant of uitknipsels van advertensies word NIE verskaf nie. Indien eksemplare van die Provinsiale Koerant verlang word, moet R4,70 vir elke eksemplaar gestuur word.

Intekengeld (vooruitbetaalbaar)

Die intekengeld vir die Provinsiale Koerant (insluitend alle Buitengewone Provinsiale Koerante) is soos volg:

Halfjaarliks (posvry)		R122,50		
Jaarliks (posvry)		R 2	245,00	
Prys per los eksemplaar (posvry)		R	4,70	

Seëls word nie aanvaar nie.

Sluitingstyd vir die Aanname van Kopie

Alle advertensies moet die Beampte Belas met die Provinsiale Koerant bereik nie later nie as 12:00 sewe werksdae voordat die Koerant uitgegee word. Advertensies wat na daardie tyd ontvang word, word oorgehou vir publikasie in die uitgawe van die volgende week, of as die adverteerder dit verlang, sal dit in die Koerant wat op die pers is as 'n "Laat Advertensie" geplaas word. In sulke gevalle moet die advertensie aan die Beampte oorhandig word nie later nie as 10:30 op die Donderdag van die week voordat die Koerant gepubliseer word en dubbeltarief sal vir dié advertensie gevra word.

'n "Laat Advertensie" sal nie sonder definitiewe instruksies van die Adverteerder as sodanige geplaas word nie.

Advertensietariewe

Kennisgewings wat volgens Wet in die Provinsiale Koerant geplaas moet word: R2,00 per sentimeter of deel daarvan, enkelkolom.

Advertensiegelde is vooruitbetaalbaar aan die Beampte belas met die Provinsiale Koerant, Posbus 517, Bloemfontein 9300.

Gedruk en uitgegee deur die Vrystaatse Provinslale Administrasie



F

No.

No.

23

24

25